=

UNITED NATIONS ...

Distr.
GEIIERAL
£ ' i
W E N E R A L @%’f %‘ g/;{x\c.l'?ség.?g/SR.BlG
&ﬁ\ : f? pril
ASSEMBLY \t\gk) #{5/ IAL:  TUCLTAOH
"“"‘"‘?ﬂ‘?{b ORIGII-AL- LUGL_-)IA

COMMITTEE ON THE PEACEFUL USES OF OUTER SPACE
LEGAL SUB-COMMITTEE
Eighteenth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 316th MEETING
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Wednesday,
4 April 1979, at 10.30 a.m.

Chairman: Mr. WYZNER (Poland)

CONTENTS

Matters relating to the definition and/or delimitation of outer space and outer
space activities, bearing in mind, inter alia, questions relating to the
geostationary orbit (continued)

Other matters

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages. They shculd be

set forth in a memorandum and also incorporated in a copy of the reco?d. Téey _
should be sent within one week of the date of this document to the Chief, O0fficial

Records Editing Section, Department of Conference Services, rcom A-3550.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of this session wil% bi
consolidated in a single corrigendum, to be issued shortly after the end ci the

session.
79-55600 Fa



A/AC.105/C.2/SR.316
nglish
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.50 a.m.

MATTERS RELATING TO THE DEFINITION AND/OR DELIMITATION OF OUTER SPACT. AND OUTER
SPACE ACTIVITIES, BEARING I MIND, INTER ALTA, QUESTIONS RELATING TO TIHE
GEOSTATTOWARY ORBIT (continued) (A/AC.105/C.2/7 and Add.l, A/AC.105/C.2/L.121)

1. Mr. BOND (United States of America) recalled that several years earlier the
Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee had, after detailed study concluded that
there were no scientific or technical characteristics of the earth’s upper
atmosphere that would serve as a natural determinant of the lower limits of outer
space. It had requested guidance from the parent Committee repgarding the purposes
for which various criteria relevant to a definition of outer space should be
reviewed. However, the subject had since been dropped from the agenda of the
Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee because the parent Committee had been unable
to identify practical problems that would require a definition. That point was
central to his Government's position on the issue. Any proposal on the definition
of outer space should be viewed in the light of whether the difficulties it
involved were worth accepting, given the absence of practical problems relating to

the exploration and use of outer space whose solution would be facilitated by such
a definition.

2. The proposal to establish a boundary at the arbitrary altitude of 100 to 110
kllogetres involved significant difficulties. First, that region was devoid of
physically observable milestones. HMost countries had no capability for accurately

determining the altitude of space objects and therefore had no way to monitor an
altitude boundary.

e Secondly, such a boundary would substantially affect not only the sovereign
rights of States but also their ability to work together as a community of nations.
In his delegation's view, Member States could not predict with confidence the
consequences of choosing that arbitrary altitude.

L, His delegation did not believe that there had yet been adequate examination of
the many scientific, legal, technical and political factors relevant to the drawing
of any particular line in the sky. Was it certain, for example, that any

eventual norms for the use of nuclear power sources in outer‘sp;ce should be
applicable only above 100 kilometres? Furthermore, complex physical and chemical
processe§ were going on in the upper atmosphere and in ncar»eafth space, affecting
both subjacent States and the entire world community. For example, the scientific
community had drawn attention to the adverse global effects of disgurbances in the
ozone layer which surrounded the planet at an altitude of about 35 kilometres, far
below the proposed boundary. Ilad adequate consideration been given to such factors’

5. Thirdly, an arbitrary line might inhibit or even stifle future efforts to
explore and use space. For example, according to the Committec on Space Research -
(COSPAR) of the International Council of Scientific Unions (A/AC.105/164, forewords®’

e



A/AC.105/C.2/5R7.316
¥nglish
Page 3

Nr. Bona, United Ciuves)

seemed that past estimates on the lowest altitudes to which satellites could nLiung
without falling to the ground or burning up in the atmosphere had been too hich,
especially for satellites with highly eccentric orbits which penetrated the
atmosphere for a limited time during each revolution around the earth, lermber
States should be grateful that the Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Quter Space
had not acted precipitately in adopting a demarcation line based on asswiptions
which now appeared to be invalid. It was by no means certain that present prorosals
vere based upon better physical assumptions:; for example, one satellite launched in
197k was known to have a perigee of 96 kilometres.

6. His delegation appreciated the effort undertaken by the Soviet Union in
producing its proposal (A/AC.105/C.2/L.121) and recognized the difficulties
involved. However, it did not believe that the proposal avoided the problems he had
mentioned. Furthermore, it was not clear how a space object was to be defined for
the purposes of paragraph 3 of that proposal. There was also some doubt about the
usefulness of a provision which could prevent a space object from returning to
earth in the territory of any country except the launching State:; the consequences
of such a provision could only inhibit international co-operation.

(ks His delegation continued to believe that no acceptable legal or sc%entific
case could be made for claims of sovereignty over the geo§tat10nary orbit. At an
altitude of 36,000 kilometres, that orbit was clearly an integral part of outer

space.

8. Mr. LI GOURRIEREC (France) said that France was int?rgsted in the definition
and/or delimitation of outer space and outer-space activ1t1e§ because of the
DPresent unsatisfactory situation in which outer—spgce law fa%lgd to deflff ;
Precisely its own field of application. It establ%shed §pec1f1c rulesTbuq: ,On
inter alia, on the principle of freedom set fo?th in article ; of theU reafyouter
Principles’Governing the Activities of Sta?es in Fhe Explorat109 and zelgw s
Space, including the Moon and Other Celestial Bodies, whereas alr—sp:gtive figlds
based primarily on the sovereignty of Stgt?s. Ignorance of theEreipthouCh ey
of application of such different legal régimes was dang?rous. Ye robiems -
lack of a definition of outer space had not ygt given rise Fo m:JortEeoret;cél.
question of such a definition should not be dlSmlSS?d as P?lng tgz e
Sooner or later, concrete problems were bound to arise, g&1ven

number of States engaged in space activities.

initi {trary, inasmuch as there were no
9. The definition would have to be arbitra y,CIear-cut B e e oF e

sufficientl recise scientific criteria for a : o
boundary bengen air space and outer space. The fliurez ?gsztggze:hguld -
were between 80 and 120 kilometres. The.procedure or es B
similar to that followed in the elab9ratlon o? the ma%oralpSUb_Conmittee'

In that respect, primary responsibility lay with the Leg

; imi i f air space and
10. The Soviet Union's working paper relating to the deiﬁ:ifazgggogch o
ouéer space (A/AC.105/C.2/L.121) afforded a coherent ove oI

) e b d R s
/‘ LB



A/AC.105/C.2/SR.316
English
Page U

(¥Mr. Le Gourrierec, France)

above sea level appeared reasonable to his delegation, and the document was
relevant in other respects. It was important, nowever, for the Lepmal Sub-Committee
to consider the question in the light of the work being done by other interested
bodies, such as the International Civil Aviaticn Organization.

11. The Legal Sub-Committee was the best forum for the discussion of the
definition and/or delimitation of cuter space and outer-space activities, and the
views of all delegations would be very useful in guiding its future work. At the
nineteenth session, his delegation would report on his Government's response to
the Soviet proposals.

12. Mr. EL-BANHAWI (Egypt) said that his delegation regarded the question of the
definition and delimitation of outer space as one of the main issues in the field
of space law. The importance of the future uses of outer space necessitated
establishing an accurate definition on the basis of technical, scientific and legal
factors; his delegation could not agree to either functional or arbitrary criteria.
It was necessary to view outer space as the common heritage of mankind and to
ensure the freedom of all countries in the exploration and use of outer space.

13. As Egypt had asserted over 10 years earlier, a clear definition of outer
space would assist efforts to provide a legal framework to repulate activities
conducted in outer space beyond national jurisdiction and activities which fell
partly or completely under State sovereignty. Such a definition would no doubt

benefit all States. Egypt considered the geostationary orbit to be part of outer
space and free from national jurisdiction.

1k, To gain wide acceptance, a definition of outer space should be legally and
scientifically elaborated. IlHowever, in view of the wide gaps in knowledge between
different countries, it was essential for the developed countries to furnish
comprehensive information on the question. His delegation was open-minded on the
issue and appreciated the objective efforts to formulate an acceptable definition.

15. Mr. KOLOSSOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that his delegation
was grateful to other delegations for their support for the Soviet working paper
(A/AC.105/C.2/L.121). It found unacceptable, however, the argument that -
establishing the boundary at 100 (110) kilometres above sea level would restrict
space activities. There were legal instruments in force, such as the Agrcecement
on the Rescue of Astronauts, the Return of Astronauts and the Return of Objects
Launched into Outer Space, which contained provisions regarding activities(on
earth. The Convention on International Liability for Damage Caused by Space
Objects contained provisions regarding activities carried out in air space and on
the earth's surface. His delegation hoped that its approach would meet with

greater understanding in the future and that delegations would i
stud ts proposals
more thoroughly and consult with specialists. uar e e

lé.. Some delegations bad expressed interest in the drafting of a special legal
régime for the geostationary orbit. Such a régime should be based on the
considerations on the legal status of the geostationary orbit submitted by the



.»".,/:'-.C.laj/c.f?/ ‘l:
ki 0l Rolfoky
Page 5
(“r. olesse noon)

Soviet Union at the twentieth session of the Cormittee on the Teaceful Uses op Lutey
Space (A/32/20, annex VI). The geostationary orbit wvas inseparable frer cuter
space, gnd all relevant provisions of the Treaty on Princiblés Governin~ the
Activities of States in the Lxploration and Use of Outer Sbace, includins the

Mcon and Other Celestial Bodies, were applicable to it. Under that Treaﬂv, the
geostationary orbit, like outer space as a whole, was not subject to national
appropriation by any means whatsoever. The Placing of satellites in the
geostationary orbit by States created no right of ownership over the resvective
orbital positions of the satellites or over segments of the orbit. All States
enjoyed an equal right to the utilization of the geostationary orbit, and its
utilization must not be detrimental to the interests of other States. States
should co-operate on questions relating to the placing of communications satellites
in the geostationary orbit, giving due regard to the recommendations and decisions
of the International Telecommunication Union concerning the utilization of the

17. The CHAIRMAN said there seemed to be general agreement that the item shoull
remain on the agenda of future sessions of the Sub-Committee. There was, liowever,
no agreement on the method of arriving at a definition of ocuter space, on the
content of such a definition or on the degree of urgency of its formulation.
Lastly, there was disagreement on the status of the geostationary orbit, althcurh
the Committee did not seem to exclude the possibility of prevaring a special
régime for the geostationary orbit in the future.

OTHER MATTIRS

18. Ifr. HAMPE (German Demccratic Republic) said it was generally recognlzod t@ut
the use of nuclear powér sources in satellites was leg%tlmate and c0951stogt w%t§
outer-space treaties. Malfunctions, as phenomena p0551bl¥ accomnanying ;Ci??%lxlc
and technical progress, could not be altogethgr excluded in any sphercfgLr ;o;,ﬁ11
but they should always be considered in rela§1on.t? the lgngmt?rm b;ng é::"{tth: 1
mankind. At the sixteenth session of the Scientific agd Technical uh-dV“;;Cl:ééd
the Working Group on the Use of liuclear Power Sources 1n Outer S?ace ?q+ct:n ¢
urces could be used safely in outer space provided that tne

that such power so (A/AC.105/238, annex II, para. 39).

relevant safety considerations were met

i i i t State
19. His delegation shared the concern about risks which might re;ui{eiorf:r
frém hagzardous malfunctions of outer-space objec?s bu? wondered wne”;r ;Furces "
instance, prior notice of the launch of a satellite w1thfnu§lear Eihvouié N
; i ther the people of the ear Tould b
board would contribute to safety or whe e peomle O b i¥ate Hovtmiensien

i notifications.
unnecessarily alarmed by such b ject with muclear pover soiffcdl on

1ways have to be given if a space : e s o
zz:ig 3as 1a1functioning and posed an acute risk of damage tgliniecZIUtian33/lé’
othef States A1l Member States had agreed to General Assembly s

which contained a recommendation to that effect.



A/AC.105/C.2/SR.316
English
Page 6

(Jir. Hampe, German Democratic Republic)

20. His delegation had carefully studied the Canadian proposal concerning the
inclusion of an item on nuclear power sources in the agenda of the Legal
~Ub-Commitiee but felt that the proposal, as it stool, would not lead Lo desirable
results in the foreseeable future.

21. 1lir. LE GOURRIEREC (France) said that his delegation could accept the
Canadian proposal concerning the inclusion of an agenda item on nuclear pover
sources, on the understanding that it was the Committee on the Peaceful Uses of
Outer Space and then the General Assembly that would take a final decision on the
inclusion of such an item.

22, (Consideration of the proposed item should take into account the results of the
work being done in the Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee, which should form
the basis for discussion, since technical factors would be involved. 1In considering
such an item the _egal Sub-Committee should also assess existing international
legal norms, with a view to determining to what extent they needed to be
complemented.

23. Ur. CARAZQ_(Venezuela) said that although the use of nuclear power sources in
outer space could greatly benefit mankind, it also involved risks which must be
taken into account. No effort, however, should be spared to use those sources of
energy which carried no risk of pollution. His delegation supported the
establishment of a legal régime for nuclear-povered satellites and welcomed the
Canadian proposal concerning the inclusion in the Sub-Committee’s agenda of an item
on the legal aspects of the use of nuclear power sources in outer space.

Venezuela was particularly interested in aspects related to disaster prevention and
studies on radiation-exposure levels. It also believed that the activities of the
Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee were compatible with and complementary to
those of the Legal Sub-Committee and that no obstacle should be placed in the way

of prompt consideration of the legal aspects of the use of nuclear power in outer
space.

2h. Mr. KOLOSSOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that the Soviet Union
agreed that the use of nuclear power sources in outer space should take account of
t@e need to ensure the safety of human beings and the environment. At the
sixteenth session of the Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee, the Working GrouP
on thg Use of Nuclear Power Sources in Outer Snace had considered some of the
technical aspects and safety measures relating to that question. The Working
Group would be continuing its work, vhich would yield results of its own.

25. _Some of.the problems referred to by delegations had already becn settled at
the international legal level. For example, Ceneral Assembly rcsolution 33/16

requesteq launching States to inform States concerned in the event that a space
object with nuclear power sources on board was malfunctioning with a risk of

re entry of radio-active materiale to the earth. That resolution had becn adopted
by consensus, and States should act in full accordance with its provisions. The



AJAC.105/C.2/8R. 31
ni3lish

-
Paze 7

{(lr, ¥olessov, Usse
necessary steps were therefore already being taken bursuant to thaot resoluticn ang
to *?he recommenc.latlons nade by the Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Quter Soage
at its twenty-first session (A/33/20, para. 76). -

26. Som? delegations had raised the question of including in the Lezal
sub-Committee's agenda a separate item on the legal aspects of ¢ uze ofF nuclear
Pover sources in outer space. The scope of the proposed item, as worded, vas very
broad. The initial reaction of delegations indicated that the problem consisted
of a number of specific questions which were, at varying levels, ready for
discussion in a legal forum. There seemed to be a preference for a discussicn of
some aspects of that multifaceted problem, most of which were related to complex
technical matters not fully understood by Jurists. It therefore scered premature
to adopt a specific recommendation for the inclusion of the proposed item as
described by the present wording of the proposal. The Lezal Sub-Committee should
give further thought to the matter before doing anything likely to disrupt the
consensus reached after difficult negotiations at the twenty-first session of the
Comuittee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space. It was also important not to
complicate further the work recently begun in the Working Group by prematurely
expressing a legal view. That would not be conducive to a business-like
atmosphere in the Group. His delegation would give the various views of othor
delegations the serious consideration they deserved. For the time pcinn, however,
it felt that the proposed item, as worded, seemed unlikely to contriluse 1o
specific results on any particular legal aspect of the problem. It should also
be borne in mind that the Legal Sub-Committee’s agenda was already full and that
new items, especially if broad in scope, could delay the cogclusion of work on
other questions which were of great concern to all and required scttlement on

a

priority basis.

27. Mr, TAKEV (Bulgaria) said his delegation agreed wit@ thgse of the Gcrmin
Democratic Republic and the Soviet Union that the inclusion 1n the agende of

separate item on the legal aspects of the use of nuclear power sourc?s in outer
The agenda of the Sub-Committee was already quite heavy,
hen the technical asrect

£

ani
space was premature. o
the Canadian proposal, as formulated, was too broad.

the problem became clear, the Sub=Committee could take up the legal aspects.

Mr. KIRSCH (Canada) said that his delegation appreciated the suprort wnlcﬁn

t unaairous. iHe
retted that that support vas not : e
b oviet Union in ccrzentins

one of the

25
its proposal had received an

wished now to reply to some of the points raised by the S
ady been

i i id that s
" the Soviet representative had sal
e e ar pover sources in outer space had alreal;

legal aspects of the use of nucle . e Sl oo
ftl d S narticular in General Assembly resolution 33/16. ‘hile :i et
i g had been raised in the resolution, a¢ ccud &9

that legal aspects of the matter : r e
a;iee t;at thgy had been settled, although the problen pight be sirply

Semalltlc t; p etab IIe agl eed thab tl1e IESOlthlOIl and Other 1'1.5\,."‘.‘..5'1.; S
.
O_i: erna .()I]al la” !)['()V-(ied g()()il t)() 1TS ()f (1el)a[tl][e f‘”]' E]]le (:() M ]",t,ee s

consideration, but they needed extension. /

»aon

u



A/AC.lOS/C.E/SR.316
English
Page 8

(Mr. Kirsch, Canada)

29. Secondly, the Soviet representative had spoken of the need to consider the
technical aspects of the use of nuclear power SOurces in outer space before moving
on to the lesal aspects. He would agree that the Lepal Sub-Committee should
monitor the work of the Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee, but he could not
agree that work on the problem in the Legal Sub-Committee might compromise the work
of the Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee. Ilis delegation had no wish to
interfere in the work of that Sub-Committee but felt that there was an essentially
legal side of the matter which should be dealt with in the Legal Sub~Committee.
Was it, for instance, desirable that States launching satellites containing nuclear
pover sources should provide information on the existence of such sources in their
satellites and on cther problems in connexion with the operation of those
satellites? Was it desirable for the Legal Sub-Committee to study the possibility
of improving the international assistance machinery? Should States be obliged to
take spvecific security measures in connexion with satellites containing nuclear
power sources? His delegation felt that the wishes of the Legal Sub--Committee
with regard to those questions should be clarified. Once the questions of
principle had been taken up, the technical problems, particularly in connexion
with implementation, would arise, as they always had in the case of other matters
dealt with by the Sub-Committee. In the view of his delegation, the Sub-Committee
already had enocugh information to begin a study of the matter.

30. Thirdly, he did not understand why the Soviet representative opposed the
inclusion of a new item concerning the question. A new item would be included only
on condition that it did not prejudice the discussion of questions already on the
agenda. iloreover, his delegation had reservations about the principle that the
inclusion of a new item was impossible until the consideration of existing items
had been ccneluded. The discussions on some items had lasted for many years.

Yet the question of the use of nuclear power sources was one of substance and
merited consideration.

31. Fourthly, with regard to the precise wording of the proposed item, his
delegation would appreciate any concrete suggestions.

32. 1In conclusion, he said that the differences among delegations seemed to
concern the method and timing of consideration of a particular item rather than the
principle itself. The discussion thus far indicated a very constructive spirit,
and he was convinced that a generally acceptable solution would soon be reached.

33. r. MATSUOZAWA (Japan) said that his delegation agreed in principle with the
comnents of the representative of Canada. !Most delegations had felt that it would
be desirable for the Sub-Committee to start examining some of the leral aspects of
the use of nuclear power sources in outer space, despite the work al;eady éarried
out by the Working Group on the Use of Nuclear Power Sources.

34, Ilis de%egation therefore strongly supported the Canadian proposal that a
?ecom@endatlon shoul@ be made to the parent Committee for the inclusion of a nev
item in the Sub-Committee's agenda for the next session.



A/AC.105/C.2/93. 215
Inzlish

Pare 9

35. Mr, MAAS GEESTERANUS (Netherlands) said his delegation agreed that it was
possible, as the representative of the German Democratic Republic had sursestel,
that notification of the launching of nuclear-povered spacecraft mirht c;cate
undue concern among the general public. That was one of the factors to be
considered when further discussions were held on the item, as proroscd by the

representative of Canada,

36. His delegation also agreed that the discussions in the Sub-Cormittee had
revealed some diversity of opinion as to which particular legal aspects might be in
line with States' primary interests. That issue should again be taken up in future
consideration of the item. For those and other reasons, his delesation was of the
opinion that the time had indeed come to have a separate item on nuelear pover
sources included in the Sub-Committee's agenda, so that it could carry out 2
thorough considerction of the legal aspects of their use in outer space.

37. The CHAIRMAN observed that there was a lack of consensus concerning the
Canadian proposal to recommend the inclusion of a separate item on the use of

nuclear power sources.

38. Mr. LAY (Ttaly) said it was his understanding that the draft rePort would ot
least reflect the desire of most delegations to recommend the inclus%on of n
separate item on nuclear power sources. That did not preclude reachlngla
consensus; should that prove impossible, the matter should be left to the parent

Committee to decide.
cise formulation of that part of the

He urged delegations to
He said that the

39. The CHAIRMAN pointed out tha? the pre .
report was for the Sub-Committee itself to decide. I
meet informally in order to reach an agreed formulation.

> 1 1 ‘.A(.
Sub-Committee had now concluded its consideration of item 6

The meeting rose at 12.20 p.m.






